
M:\City Council Meetings\2026 Council Staff Reports\1.20.2026 Council Meeting - TUESDAY\1.20.2026 Regular Meeting\1.20.2026 Regular 
Agenda.doc 

Regular City Council Meeting 
7:00 p.m., Tuesday, Jan. 20, 2026 
City Council Chambers 
23600 Liberty Street 
Farmington, MI 48335 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

1. ROLL CALL

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. PUBLIC COMMENT

4. APPROVAL OF ITEMS ON CONSENT AGENDA
A. City of Farmington Minutes
B. Farmington Monthly Payments Reports
C. Farmington Public Safety Monthly Report
D. Annual Library Special Events:

1. Truck-a-Palooza
2. Family Fun in Riley Park
3. Pavilion Story Time
4. Last Day of School Celebration

E. Proclamation: Optimist Day

5. APPROVAL OF REGULAR AGENDA

6. NEW BUSINESS
A. Approve resolution adopting Park and Recreation Master Plan
B. Special Event: Praise in the Park
C. Recommended appointments to the Founders Festival Committee

7. PRESENTATION/PUBLIC HEARINGS
A. Holly Days Recap
B. Farmers Market

8. PUBLIC COMMENT

9. CITY COUNCIL COMMENTS

10. ADJOURNMENT

The City will follow its normal procedures for accommodation of persons with disabilities. Those individuals needing 
accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact the City Clerk (248) 474-5500, ext. 2218 at least 
two working days in advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 



City Council Meeting 
7:00 p.m., December 1, 2025 

23600 Liberty Street 
Farmington, MI 48335 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

A meeting of the Farmington City Council was held on December 1, 2025, at 23600 Liberty Street, 
Farmington, Michigan. Notice of the meeting was posted in compliance with Public Act 267-1976. 

The meeting was called to order at 7:02 PM by Mayor LaRussa. 

1. Roll Call

Attendee Name Title Status Arrived 
Johnna Balk Mayor Pro-Tem Present 
Joe LaRussa Mayor Present 
Kevin Parkins Councilmember Present 
Steve Schneemann Councilmember Present 
Maria Taylor Councilmember Present 

City Administration Present:  
City Manager, David Murphy  
Assistant City Manager, Chris Weber  
City Clerk, Meaghan Bachman 
Deputy Public Safety Director, Todd Anderson 
City Treasurer, Jaime Pohlman  
City Attorney, Beth Saarela 
Austin Downie, OHM Advisors  

2. Approval of the Agenda

Motion by Balk
Seconded by Taylor

Resolved, move to approve the agenda as presented.

Motion carried unanimously 5-0

3. Public Comment

Victoria Kirby of 34935 Oakland Street, addressed the council expressing concerns about
authorizing deer culls in residential areas, urging consideration of more humane non-lethal
solutions for wildlife management.



Minutes Farmington City Council December 1, 2025 

4. Board and Commission Interview: Commission for Children, Youth and Families,
Bridget Gibbons

Bridget Gibbons was interviewed for the Commission for Children, Youth, and Families
position. No action was taken on an appointment at this meeting.

5. Consideration to Amend Fiscal Year 2025-26 Budget: Salt Dome

Motion by Taylor
Seconded by Balk

Move to adopt Budget Amendment Resolution #6, amending Fiscal Year 2025-26 Budget.

Motion carried unanimously 5-0

6. Workplan Review Quarterly Report

City Manager David Murphy presented the quarterly workplan update. City Council
reviewed the final quarterly report for the 2024–2025 goals cycle, noting progress made and
acknowledging that some goals remain ongoing due to capacity limitations and emerging
priorities. Council discussed opportunities to improve the goals-setting process, including
clearer expectations, action plans, and improved prioritization.

Council also received an update on the Civic Theater, including early planning related to
serving alcohol and potential future enhancements. The Downtown Development Authority
has expressed interest in partnering on Civic Theater initiatives.

Council discussed the need for improved tracking of long-term versus short-term goals, the
importance of holding planned study sessions, and balancing goal implementation with
projects that arise during the cycle. Council emphasized the value of focusing more on
strategic discussions and policy direction. Council referenced the Capital Improvement
Plan (CIP) as a potential model for improved prioritization.

A Council goals session was tentatively scheduled for January 17, 2025 to further refine the
process and establish priorities for the next cycle. The facilitator of the goals meeting was
discussed. Mr. Murphy provided a quarterly report on the 2024-2025 goals, noting that
approximately 11 out of 27 items were completed or ongoing.

7. Discussion: Update on Governor Warner Mansion

Councilmember Steve Schneemann presented updates on the Governor Warner Mansion
renovations, recommending removal of walls on the east side of the second floor to create
one large gathering space while keeping smaller rooms on the west side intact. It was noted
that while Council previously reviewed initial design concepts, there has not yet been full
consensus on the intended use of the second floor.



Minutes Farmington City Council December 1, 2025 

Council reviewed earlier discussions that discussed limiting second-floor use to non-event 
purposes, such as an artist-in-residence program, to reduce structural and code 
requirements. However, additional consideration has been given to allowing limited 
gathering space on the second floor while managing structural capacity and cost. 

Council discussed the need for accessibility improvements, including installation of a 
limited-use/limited-application (LULA) elevator to provide access to the second floor. 
Council expressed strong support for ensuring full accessibility and inclusivity within the 
historic structure. 

Additional building considerations discussed included restroom placement on both levels, 
warming kitchens, and potential structural reinforcement of the second floor to safely 
accommodate limited group use. 

8. Discussion: Update to the Shiawassee Connection
Council received an update from Austin Downie and Claire Martin of OHM on the
Shiawassee Connection project as it advances toward final design. Staff reviewed the
proposed ADA-compliant pathway alignment connecting downtown to Shiawassee Park,
including replacement of the eastern pedestrian bridge and removal of the non-compliant
western staircase and bridge.
Staff explained that geotechnical analysis supports construction of a raised boardwalk on
pilings to minimize floodplain impacts and hillside disturbance while meeting accessibility
and HUD funding requirements. The project also includes a new bridge above the 500-year
floodplain, paved ADA-accessible paths within the park, and stair connections where
ramps are not feasible.
Council discussed safety, lighting, emergency access, and potential funding
opportunities. Council expressed general support for the proposed approach and directed
staff to continue with final design and funding evaluation.

9. Oakland County Transportation Grant

Motion by Balk

Seconded by Taylor

Resolved, move to approve the use of the Oakland County Transportation grant funds to

construct three (3) pedestrian shelters at Jamestown Apartments, Chatham Hills

Apartments (western stop location), and near the intersection of Drake and Grand River as

recommend.

Roll Call Vote:

Yeas: Balk, LaRussa, Parkins, Schneemann, Taylor

Nays: None

Motion carried unanimously 5-0



Minutes Farmington City Council December 1, 2025 

10. Proposal to Consolidate Voting Precincts

Motion by Balk
Seconded by Taylor

Resolved, move to approve the consolidation of the City’s voting precincts from five (5) to
three (3), effective for the 2026 election cycle, with Precinct 1 located at City Hall, Precinct
2 at Farmington High School, and Precinct 3 at Farmington High School.

Motion carried unanimously 5-0

11. Other Business

City Manager Murphy provided updates on the estate sale scheduling, noting delays until
January to allow historical commission review of items for potential museum preservation.

12. Public Comment

Della James commended the Shiawassee Connection project and said that it looks great.
She also raised concerns about potential voter confusion due to precinct consolidations
and emphasized the importance of clear communication.

13. Council Comment

Mayor LaRussa noted the State of the Cities event is scheduled for March 5, 2026. He also
announced the Michigan Association of Mayors will visit Farmington August 5-7, 2026, with
a group dinner currently planned for August 6 and August 5 reserved as a backup date.

10. Adjournment

Motion by Balk
Seconded by Taylor

Resolved, move to adjourn the meeting at 9:22 PM.

Motion carried unanimously 5-0

________________________________ 
Joe LaRussa, Mayor    

Meaghan K. Bachman, City Clerk 



Special City Council Meeting 
6:00 p.m., December 15, 2025 
Conference Room 
23600 Liberty Street 
Farmington, MI 48335 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 

A special meeting of the Farmington City Council was held on December 15, 2025, at 23600 Liberty 
Street, Farmington, MI. Notice of the meeting was posted in compliance with Public Act 267-1976.  

The meeting was called to order at 6:01 PM by Mayor LaRussa 

1. ROLL CALL

Attendee Name Title Status Arrived 

Johnna Balk Mayor Pro-Tem Present 

Joe LaRussa Mayor Present 

Kevin Parkins Councilmember Present 

Steve Schneemann Councilmember Present 

Maria Taylor Councilmember Present 

City Administration Present:  
City Manager, David Murphy  
Assistant City Manager, Chris Weber 
City Clerk, Meaghan Bachman 
DPW Superintendent, Josh Leach 
City Attorney, Beth Saarela 
OHM Advisors, Austin Downie 

2. APPROVAL OF REGULAR AGENDA

Motion by Balk
Seconded by Taylor

Resolved, move to approve the agenda as presented.

Motion carried unanimously 5-0

3. PUBLIC COMMENT

No members of the public spoke.



Minutes Farmington City Council December 15, 2025 

2 

4. John Kaczor, Principal, Municipal Analytics, presented a comprehensive water and sewer
rate study analysis. John explained that the city's current cash position is weak and
insufficient to handle emergencies or take advantage of grants.

The presentation covered three main funding scenarios for a 10-year capital plan totaling
$15.2 million for water and $6.5 million for sewer improvements.

The first scenario maintained current rate structures with minimal increases of
approximately 8% for sewer and 7.3% for water, resulting in a combined impact of about
$6.54 per quarter for average residential customers.

The second scenario involved aggressive rate increases with a 40% water rate increase in the
first year, resulting in a 22.5% combined impact in year one.

The third scenario proposed a more gradual approach with 18% annual water rate Increases
for three years, resulting in approximately 13% combined annual increases for the first three
years.

Council members expressed concerns about the impact on residents, particularly lower-
income households. Some members requested additional analysis showing how different
rate structures would affect various customer categories based on meter size and usage
patterns.

The item will be brought back to City Council in February 2026.

5. Appointment to Commission on Children, Youth and Families

Motion by Balk
Seconded by Parkins

Resolved, move to approve the appointment of Bridget Gibbons to the Farmington seat on
the Farmington/Farmington Hills Commission for Children, Youth and Families for a term
ending December 31, 2027.

Motion Carried Unanimously

6. Other Business

City Manager Murphy asked to add payment to Robertson Brothers to the regular meeting
agenda.

7. Public Comment

No members of the public spoke.



Minutes Farmington City Council December 15, 2025 

3 

8. COUNCIL COMMENT

No members of council spoke.

9. ADJOURNMENT

Motion by Balk
Seconded by Taylor

Resolved, move to adjourn the special meeting at 7:19 PM.

Motion carried unanimously

________________________________ 
Joe LaRussa, Mayor  

___________________________________ 
Meaghan K. Bachman, City Clerk 



City Council Meeting 
7:00 p.m., December 15, 2025 

23600 Liberty Street 
Farmington, MI 48335 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

A meeting of the Farmington City Council was held on December 15, 2025, at 23600 Liberty Street, 
Farmington, Michigan. Notice of the meeting was posted in compliance with Public Act 267-1976.  

The meeting was called to order at 7:23 PM by Mayor LaRussa.   

1. Roll Call

Attendee Name Title Status Arrived 
Johnna Balk Mayor Pro-Tem Present 
Joe LaRussa Mayor Present 
Kevin Parkins Councilmember Present 
Steve Schneemann Councilmember Present 
Maria Taylor Councilmember Present 

City Administration Present:  
City Manager, David Murphy  
Assistant City Manager, Chris Weber  
City Clerk, Meaghan Bachman 
Public Safety Director, Bob Houhanisin 
DDA Director, Jessica Westendorf  
City Attorney, Beth Saarela 
Civic Theater Manager, Clare Cooney  

2. Public Comment

Mike Sweeney from the Emergency Preparedness Commission provided winter
preparedness recommendations and tips.

3. Approval of the Consent Agenda

Motion by Balk
Seconded by Taylor

Resolved, move to approve the consent agenda as presented.

A. City of Farmington Minutes
B. Farmington Public Safety Monthly Report
C. Form 5572 Submittal - Pension and OPEB
D. Revised 2026 City Council Meeting Dates
E. SMART Agreement

Motion carried unanimously 5-0 



Minutes Farmington City Council December 15, 2025 

4. Approval of the Regular Agenda

Motion by Schneemann
Seconded by Taylor

Resolved, move to approve the consent agenda as presented with the following
amendment:

Add: 6-D payment for Robertson Brothers.

Motion carried unanimously 5-0

6-A. Civic Theater Liquor License 

Motion by Taylor 
Supported by Balk 

Clare Cooney presented a proposal for theater concession upgrades, specifically 
requesting a municipal civic center liquor license for the Farmington theater. She 
discussed that the theater would install a small bar in the upstairs lobby serving canned 
beer and poured wine. 

Resolved, move to adopt resolution approving on-premises municipal civic center liquor 
license application.  

Roll Call Vote: 
Yeas: Balk, LaRussa, Parkins, Schneemann, Taylor 
Nays: None 

Motion carried unanimously 5-0 

6-B. DDA 2026 Events Calendar, Temporary Liquor License Applications, Street Closures 
and Designated Sidewalk Shopping 

Motion by Balk 
Seconded by Taylor 

Resolved, move to Adopt Resolution Approving the 2026 DDA Community Events Calendar, 
Temporary Liquor License Applications, Street Closures and Designated Sidewalk Shopping 
dates as presented. 

Motion carried unanimously 5-0 



Minutes Farmington City Council December 15, 2025 

 

 
  

 
6-C. Board and Commission Appointment: Board of Review 
 

Motion by Balk 
Supported by Parkins 
 
Resolved, move to appoint Ula Kajtoch to the Farmington Board of Review for a term ending 
December 31, 2028. 
 
Motion carried unanimously 5-0 
 

6-D. Payment to Robertson Brothers 
 

Assistant City Manager Chris Weber presented grant payment approval for Robertson 
Brothers, explaining that EGLE had approved eligible costs and dispersed $500,000 in grant 
funds, with $497,000 requested for disbursement to Robertson Brothers for environmental 
cleanup and demolition activities.  

  
 Motion by Parkins 
 Supported by Taylor 
 
 Resolved, move to approve grant payment to Robertson Brothers.  
 
 Roll Call Vote: 

Yeas: LaRussa, Parkins, Schneemann, Taylor, Balk 
Nays: None 

 
Motion carried unanimously 5-0 

 
7. Public Comment  
 

No members of the public spoke. 
 
8. Council Comment 
 

Mayor LaRussa announced that Farmington received $481,675 in transportation alternatives 
program funding from the Southeast Michigan Council of Governments (SEMCOG) for 
sidewalk and crossing improvements. The city has made the covers of multiple statewide 
association publications and completed the second public space project.  
 
Mayor LaRussa noted the city has done a lot of great things and felt that it is a testament to 
the leadership of the City Council and the diligence and the hard work of the administration, 
the department chairs and the department teams as well. He noted it has been a great year 
and is looking forward to another great year.  
 
 
 
 



Minutes Farmington City Council December 15, 2025 

9. Closed Session

Motion by Taylor
Supported by Balk

Resolved, move to convene into closed session to discuss labor negotiations and
confidential correspondence from the City Attorney.

Roll Call Vote:
Yeas: Parkins, Taylor, Balk, LaRussa, Schneemann
Nays: None

Motion carried unanimously 5-0

Reconvene into Regular Meeting

Motion by Balk
Supported by Schneemann

Resolved, to reconvene into the regular meeting.

Motion carried unanimously 5-0

Vote on Closed Session Item

Motion by LaRussa
Supported by Taylor

Resolved, move to ratify the POAM agreement as presented, subject to final amendments
or minor modifications that may be determined by our labor attorney, the city’s attorney, or
the City of Farmington.

Roll Call Vote:
Yeas: Schneemann, Taylor, Balk, LaRussa, Parkins
Nays: None

Motion carried unanimously 5-0



Minutes Farmington City Council December 15, 2025 

 

 
  

 
10. Adjournment 
 
 Motion by Schneemann 
 Seconded by Taylor 
 

Resolved, move to adjourn the meeting at 8:32 PM. 
 
Motion carried unanimously 5-0 
 
 
 

 
________________________________ 
Joe LaRussa, Mayor    

 
 
  
Meaghan K. Bachman, City Clerk  

 











Farmington Public Safety Department 
Public Safety Director Bob Houhanisin 

 23600 LIBERTY STREET, FARMINGTON MICHIGAN 48335 | PHONE: (248) 474-4700 | FAX: (248) 442-9815 

December 2025 Public Safety Incidents 

Possession of Cocaine: 
On 12/02/2025 at approximately 8:45 PM an Officer conducted a traffic stop in the area of Power Rd 
and Grand River Ave. Upon contacting the driver (48 YO Male) it was discovered he had a revoked 
drivers license. Officers advised the male to step out of the vehicle and conducted a pat down for 
weapons to which several vials containing a white powdery substance were located on his person. 
Officers conducted a field test of the substance that tested positive for cocaine. The male was 
subsequently arrested for Possession of Cocaine, Possession of Drug Paraphernalia, as well as Driving 
While License Revoked. The case has been forwarded to the Oakland County Prosecutors’ Office. 

OWI Second Offense: 
On 12/12/2025 at approximately 11:30 PM and officer on patrol was passed by a vehicle on EB M5 near 
Farmington at an estimated 110 MPH. The officer noted that the vehicle was unable to maintain its lane 
and driving erratically. A traffic stop and subsequent investigation led to the arrest of the driver, a 31-
year-old male for OWI second offense. He was housed until sober and released pending submission to 
the prosecutors office.   

Smoke Investigation:  
On 12/14/2025 at approximately 00:30 AM officers were dispatched to the 37000 block of Grand River 
for a reported fire alarm. Officers arrived and located smoke inside one of the suites, which had a 
kitchen. Towels left unattended on a stove were found smoldering, removed from the building and 
extinguished. The building was ventilated and turned back over to the owner. There were no injuries as 
a result of the incident.       

Personal Injury Crash/OWI 2nd Offence: 
On 12/16/2025 at approximately 02:30 AM officers were dispatched to the area of NB M5 and Halstead 
Rd on the report of a road runoff. It was reported a Dark SUV was in the ditch. It was reported by the 
caller that the driver had attempted to walk away from the vehicle but had fallen. Upon arrival, Officers 
located the driver (35 YO female) laying in the snow several yards south of the vehicle. The vehicle was 
heavily damaged as it appeared to have rolled multiple times. Upon rendering medical aid to the female 
Officers noted the presence of intoxicants. The female was transported by ambulance to Corewell 
Health Hospital for non-life-threatening injuries. A search warrant was obtained for the female’s blood. 
Case pending toxicology results.  

OWI 1st Offense:  
On 12/23/2025 at approximately 6:15 PM officers were dispatched to a welfare check of a subject in a 
vehicle stopped on Longacre at Arundel. Officers made contact with the driver of the vehicle, a 35-year-
old female, and a subsequent investigation led to her arrest for OWI. The case has been forwarded to 
the prosecutor for charging considerations.   



 23600 LIBERTY STREET, FARMINGTON MICHIGAN 48335 | PHONE: (248) 474-4700 | FAX: (248) 442-9815 

Smoke Investigation:   
On 12/28/2025 at approximately 10:45 PM officers were dispatched to the 35000 block of Drakeshire 
Ln. on a reported cooking fire with smoke in the apartment. Officers arrived to find a stove top cooking 
fire that had been extinguished by the occupants with a fire extinguisher. The building was ventilated 
and able to be occupied with no reported injuries.   

CALL TYPE & QUANTITY 

TOTAL CALLS TRAFFIC STOPS MEDICALS FIRE CALLS CRASHES      
1007 272 91 10 21 

OWI OUID DWLS WARRANT FELONY 
6 0 12 14 4 



9 

Farmington City Council 
Staff Report 

Council Meeting  
Date: Jan. 20, 2026 

Reference 
Number 

4D 

Submitted by:  Melissa Andrade 

Description   Farmington Community Library Special Event Requests – Pavilion Story Time, 
Family Fun in Riley Park, Truck-a-Palooza, and Last Day of School Celebration. 

Action   Approve Farmington Community Library 2025 Special Event Applications for: 

• Last Day of School Celebration, Thursday, June 11, 2026 from noon until 3 p.m. on
side parking between the library and City Hall.

• Truck-a-Palooza, Monday, June 15, 2026, from noon until 2 p.m. in the parking lot
across the street from the Library.

• Family Fun in Riley Park, the following Wednesday evenings: June 17 & 24, July 8 & 15
(relocate to Gazebo in front of Farmington Place - adjacent to School Street - because of
Founders Festival set up on this date) with set-up time starting at 6 p.m. and the actual
concert from 7 until 8 p.m.

• Pavilion Story Time, Thursdays at Riley Park on June 18 and 25; and July 2, 9, 16
(relocate to Warner Mansion because of Founders Festival on this date), 23, & 30 from
11 a.m. until noon.

Background   

The City received four special event requests from Maria Showich-Gallup, Branch Head & Head 
of Children’s Service with the Farmington Community Library Farmington branch.   

These are all annual events. 

Materials: Four applications: Family Fun in Riley Park, Pavilion Story Time & Truck-a-
Palooza and Last Day of School Celebration 



























































Farmington City Council 
Staff Report 

Council Meeting  
Date: Jan. 20, 
2025 

Item 
Number 

4F 

Submitted by: Melissa Andrade, Assistant to the City Manager 

Agenda Topic: Optimist Day Proclamation 

Proposed Motion: Move to make the first Thursday of February Optimist Day - Feb. 5, 2026. 

Background: The local Optimist Club asked Mayor LaRussa to consider having City declare 
the first Thursday of February Optimist Day - this is Feb. 5, 2026.

Materials: Proclamation 



PROCLAMATION 

CITY OF FARMINGTON, MICHIGAN 
OFFICE OF THE MAYOR 

OPTIMIST DAY 
     The First Thursday of  February 

WHEREAS, Volunteers working with young people who are our joy of today 
and are our hope for tomorrow, are exuberant representatives of the 
potential to be reached and dreams to come true. They are also 
unbounded in their enthusiasm to use their own talent, skills, and hard 
work to make a difference in others’ lives, and; 

WHEREAS, Members of Optimist International will celebrate OPTIMIST 
DAY throughout the world the first Thursday of every February to 
promote their efforts in helping and recognizing the young people that 
make a difference in their communities and who will encourage a 
greater exchange of ideas between young people and adults, and; 

WHEREAS, There are 2400 Optimist Clubs, with more than 70,000 
Members, in Optimist International and Optimist members 
throughout the world that carry out more than 6500 service projects 
that serve six million young people a year; 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that I, Joe LaRussa, Mayor of the City of 
Farmington, issue this Proclamation declaring the first Thursday of February 
as Optimist Day in the City of Farmington. May this day instill pride in our 
city’s Optimists for all their accomplishments and for the impact they have to 
truly make a difference in others’ lives. 

Signed Jan. 20, 2026 



n 

Farmington City Council 
Staff Report 

Council Meeting  
Date: January 20, 2026 

Item 
Number 

6A 

Submitted by: Christopher M. Weber, Assistant City Manager 
Agenda Topic:  Review the 2025 Parks and Recreation Master Plan and consider adopting a 
resolution approving the plan 
Proposed Motion:  Move to approve the resolution to adopt the 2025 Parks and Recreation 
Master Plan 

Background: 

The Parks and Recreation Master Plan is a chapter in the City’s Master Plan.  Additionally, 
preparation of a formal Parks and Recreation Master Plan gives the City the ability to submit 
requests for various recreation-based grants—most notably for grants from the Michigan Natural 
Resources Trust Fund (MNRTF).  As part of its application process, the MNRTF requires that a 
formal 5-year Parks and Recreation Master Plan be on file, and that the Plan has been subject 
of appropriate public input, including a formal public hearing, and has been adopted by ”a 
resolution of the governing body that has the final authority on recreation expenditures, such as 
a city council.” 

The Planning Commission discussed and reviewed the attached City of Farmington 2025 Parks 
and Recreation Master Plan, and held the required public hearing at their January 12, 2026 
meeting.  The Commission recommended forwarding the Plan to City Council for their review 
and consideration for adoption. 

The Draft of the City of Farmington 2025 Parks and Recreation Master Plan can be found on the 
City’s website at:  https://www.farmingtonforward2025.com/parksandrec 

The requested action of City Council, as governing body of the City, is to adopt the resolution to 
approve the City of Farmington 2025 Parks and Recreation Master Plan. 

Materials: 
City of Farmington Parks and Recreation Master Plan Resolution 

https://www.farmingtonforward2025.com/parksandrec


CITY OF FARMINGTON 
OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

RESOLUTION NO. XX-XX-XX 

A RESOLUTION OF THE FARMINGTON CITY COUNCIL TO ADOPT 2025 PARKS AND 
RECREATION MASTER PLAN 

At a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Farmington, held on the 20TH day of 
January, 2026 at 7:00 o’clock p.m. 

The following resolution was offered by Councilmember  and seconded by 
Councilmember   . 

WHEREAS,  the Farmington City Council of the City of Farmington has undertaken a process of 
developing a Parks and Recreation Master Plan in accordance with the most recent 
guidelines developed by the Michigan Department of Natural Resources and made 
available to local communities, and 

WHEREAS,  the 2025 Parks and Recreation Master Plan describes the physical features, existing 
recreation facilities and the desired actions to be taken to improve and maintain 
recreation facilities; and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held by the Farmington Planning Commission on January 12, 2026 
at Farmington City Hall, 23600 Liberty Street, Farmington, Michigan to provide an 
opportunity for citizens to express opinions, ask questions, and discuss all aspects of the 
Parks and Recreation Master Plan, which such opportunity was well-advertised and 
included reasonable accommodations to allow interested individuals to review the 
proposed document; and 

WHEREAS, the Farmington City Council has developed the Parks and Recreation Master Plan for 
the benefit of the entire community and to adopt the Plan as a document to assist in 
meeting the recreation and/or natural resource conservation needs of the community; 
and 

WHEREAS, after the public hearing, the Farmington Planning Commission recommended that the 
City Council of the City of Farmington, Oakland County, Michigan, adopt said Parks and 
Recreation Master Plan. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED the Farmington City Council of the City of Farmington, Oakland 
County, Michigan hereby adopts the 2025 City of Farmington Parks and Recreation Master Plan as a 
guideline for improving recreation for the residents of the City of Farmington. 

RESULT: 
MOVER: 
SECONDER: 
AYES: 
ABSENT: 

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED JANUARY 20, 2026. 

I, Meaghan Bachman, duly authorized City Clerk for the City of Farmington do hereby certify that the 
foregoing is a true and correct copy of a motion adopted by the Farmington City Council at a regular 
meeting held on Tuesday, January 20, 2026, in the City of Farmington, Oakland County, Michigan.  



_____________________________________ 
Meaghan Bachman, City Clerk 



Farmington City Council 
Staff Report 

Council Meeting  
Date: Jan. 20, 2026 

Item 
Number 

6B 

Submitted by: Melissa Andrade, Assistant to the City Manager 
Agenda Topic: Special Event Application: Praise in the Park 
Proposed Motion:  Move to approve the Praise in the Park event application for Shiawassee 
Park on Saturday, July 25 from 4 – 7 p.m.  

Background:  The application states the event may have 400-600 people. They are planning to 
have music, food vending and inflatables, and are requesting some parking be reserved.  

The applications requests hiring Public Safety officers to monitor the event. Director Houhanisin 
recommends they hire a security service instead. He did call the event organizer and let them 
know. 

The City will also charging 3 hours of DPW time for supplying extra garbage cans and cleaning 
the park. This is reflected in the application.    

Materials: Application 













$195 3 hours

$320.00





Farmington City Council 
Staff Report 

Council Meeting  
Date: January 20, 2026 

Item 
Number 

6C 

Submitted by:  City Manager 
Agenda Topic:  Discussion of Founders Festival Committee Members 

Proposed Motion: Approve the proposed Founders Festival Committee Members as 
presented. 

Background:   After last year’s Festival and the expiration of the contract with 360 Events, the 
City Council decided to put out a request for proposals (RFP) to run the Festival. The Council 
then decided to engage JAG Entertainment to put on the Festival for the next three years. 
Council also determined that it wanted to form a new Founders Festival Committee to work with 
JAG to provide information, support, and ideas and make the Festival an enjoyable experience 
for the residents.  

In November, Council passed a motion establishing a new Festival Committee to consist of: 

• At least two of the members with an interest in property in the downtown district
• At least three residents
• At least one City Council Member (but not more than two)
• The DDA Director or their designee
• The City Manager or their designee
• The Public Safety Director or their designee
• The DPW Superintendent or their designee.

The City then put out a notice for interested applicants. The current ad hoc Founders Festival 
Committee that worked on the RFP met and reviewed the ten applications that were received. A 
copy of all ten applications has been provided to Council members. Members of the current 
Committee will be present at the Council meeting to discuss their recommendations for filling 
this newly-constituted group.    



Farmington City Council 
Staff Report 

Council Meeting  
Date: Jan. 20, 2026 Informational 

Submitted by:  Melissa Andrade, Assistant to the City Manager 

Agenda Topic:  Minutes from City’s Boards and Commissions 

CIA: October and December minutes not yet posted 
DDA: December 2025 
Historical: December 2025 
Parking: Meets quarterly, next meeting January 21 
Pathways: January meeting canceled due to weather 
Planning: December minutes not yet posted  
ZBA: January meeting canceled 
Library: December 2025  
Commission on Aging:  Did not meet in December 
Farmington/Farmington Hills Arts Commission: November 2025 
Commission on Children, Youth and Families: Did not meet in December 
Emergency Preparedness Committee: Did not meet in December 



DDA Board Meeting 
8:00 a.m. December 3, 2025 

City Hall Conference Room 
23600 Liberty St 

Farmington, MI 48335 
Minutes 

The meeting was called to order by Todd Craft at 8:01 am. 

1. Roll Call

Present: Tom Pascaris, Karlyn Cassidy, Shawn Kavanagh, Claire Perko, Todd Craft,
Joe LaRussa, Jaes McLaughlan, Sean Murphy
Absent: Donvan Singleton
Others Present: Beth Saarela, Jenny Gray, Jess Westendorf

2. Approval Of Consent Agenda
a. Minutes: November 5, 2025 DDA Board Regular Meeting
b. Minutes: November 20, 2025 DDA Executive Committee Meeting

Motion by Pascaris, seconded by McLaughlin to approve the items on the consent 
agenda. Motion passed unanimously. 

3. Approval of Regular Agenda
Motion by LaRussa, seconded by McLaughlin to approve the items on the regular
agenda. Motion passes unanimously.

4. Public Comment
Opened and closed by Todd Craft at 8:03.

5. Executive Director Update
Executive Director Jess Westendorf reported strong results from the recent Ladies
Night Out event, noting increased merchant participation and strong visitor turnout.
Upcoming holiday programming, including Holly Days and the Ugly Sweater Crawl,
is expected to continue driving foot traffic.

Construction is underway at Art Park Promenade as weather allows. Currently on
track still for completion in Spring of 2026.

She also previewed the January 13th Main Street accreditation visit at Blue Hat and
will feature sessions with DDA board members, volunteers, city council, and other
stake holders.

Downtown master planning process is entering its final stretch. A draft of the
Downtown Master Plan will be presented at the January 7, 2026 DDA Board meeting,
with presentation materials to be provided in advance.



 
 

A $2,000 Main Street Connect grant was awarded to Dolcetto for equipment 
upgrades. The grant is a matching reimbursement, administered by the DDA, with 
funds flowing from the county through the DDA to the business upon completion of 
the approved upgrades. 

6. Master Plan Review Process 
Parks and Recreation Master Plan enters its public review period on December 8, 
and the Downtown Master Plan draft will be presented to the DDA Board on January 
7th. Board members were encouraged to review all three interconnected plans to 
ensure alignment, particularly regarding parks, connectivity, and long-term 
downtown needs. 

7. Founders Festival Contract Approval 
Motion by Perko, seconded by Kavanagh to approve professional services 
agreement with JAG Entertainment for the Farmington Founders Festival and 
approve the related MOU between the City of Farmington and the DDA. Motion 
passes unanimously via roll call vote.  
 

8. Committee Updates:  
a. Promotions Committee: Committee reviewed outcomes of recent events 

and discussed refinements for improving visitor engagement, data 
collection, and merchant participation. 

b. Business Development Committee: Has not met recently but Donovan is 
working on the Late-Night Initiative and having peer conversations. 

c. Design Committee: Has not met recently but Claire is available for any last-
minute questions about Art Park construction. Also, will need to review sign 
for new Famous Hamburgers. At the beginning of the year or sometime this 
month. 

d. Public Art Committee: Members discussed ongoing integration of public art 
components into downtown improvements. 

e. Organization Committee: Preparation is underway for the Main Street 
accreditation visit, with attention to volunteer and partner engagement. 

f. Executive Committee: Met to discuss succession planning with potential 
vacancies and to have a pool of prospective members. Identified several 
engaged business owners/stakeholders in the district.  
 

9. Other Business:  
The Board discussed communication strategies with merchants regarding event 
logistics, road closures, and business engagement opportunities.  



 
 

10. Board Comment:  
Craft thanked staff and board for their work during a busy event season and 
expressed appreciation for the continued energy and creativity around both 
programming and capital projects. 
 

11. Adjournment:  
The Meeting was adjourned at 9:05 am on a motion by Perko, seconded by LaRussa. 
The motion was approved unanimously.  

 

 

 



HISTORICAL COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

Minutes


November 19, 2025


1. Meeting was called to order at 7:10pm


2. Present:  Laura Myers, Kevin Russom, Kevin Parkins, Jill Keller, Rudy Wengorovius


3. Agenda:   approved


4. Public Comment:   none


5. Approval of minutes from 10/22/2025 - approved


6. New Business:

a. First Baptist Church will be moving forward with upgrades to entryway -  will be 

presenting to Historical Comm in near future.


7. Old Business:

a. Historic District survey (photos and website): 


i. File including 15 more houses,  zip codes and more info completed (Laura)

ii. Will review, prep and share with Chris Weber for next steps in geo-mapping 

(Rudy)

iii. Website development, ownership, maintenance – TBD (Hist Comm control)


b. Future event ideas -couple updates below - (we will refer to October 22 minutes for 
further detail.)


i. Identify buildings in the city and put a plaque up that states the history. We may 
be able to get the business owners to purchase the plaque or pay half.   
Potentially start with Civic;  quick look Plaques about $150 on Etsy.


ii. Holly days booth (Dec 6) -  tabled til next year – no openings this year according 
to Walt.


iii. Farmington Merchndise site:  Farmington Bicentennial Merchandise 2024 | 
POGO by Underground Printing.      This is promoted on city website.


iv. Put lights on the bicentennial tree, put a sign “brought to you by the Farmington 
historic commission” near it. Kevin and I will put the lights on before 
Thanksgiving. We will look into using solar lights this year.    We did put lights 
on,  and Kevin R created a logo for facebook posting.


8. Commission Comments: 

a. Next meeting December 17th 


9. Adjournment at 7:55pm 

https://pogo.undergroundshirts.com/collections/farmington-bicentennial-merchandise-2024?fbclid=IwZXh0bgNhZW0CMTAAAR1YE2GKgJkA40CY3h9VYeDxzjXxdFSWmM_1BVdUI5wHGmJQtBonEkCl2ic_aem_dY1Er2o3b6CKGBh0xK-n6A
https://pogo.undergroundshirts.com/collections/farmington-bicentennial-merchandise-2024?fbclid=IwZXh0bgNhZW0CMTAAAR1YE2GKgJkA40CY3h9VYeDxzjXxdFSWmM_1BVdUI5wHGmJQtBonEkCl2ic_aem_dY1Er2o3b6CKGBh0xK-n6A
https://pogo.undergroundshirts.com/collections/farmington-bicentennial-merchandise-2024?fbclid=IwZXh0bgNhZW0CMTAAAR1YE2GKgJkA40CY3h9VYeDxzjXxdFSWmM_1BVdUI5wHGmJQtBonEkCl2ic_aem_dY1Er2o3b6CKGBh0xK-n6A


 Farmington Community Library Board of Trustees 
 Board Meeting, 6:00 p.m. - December 11, 2025 
 Downtown Branch 

 

 

Board Members Present: McClellan, Muthukuda, Brown, Murphy, Snodgrass, Doby, Snead, 

White 

 

Board Members Absent:  None 

 

Staff Members Present:  Siegrist, Showich-Gallup, Peterson, Baker, K. Sexton 

 

Staff Members Absent:  None 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

The Regular Board Meeting was called to order at 6:12 by President McClellan.  

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

MOTION by Snead to approve the Agenda for the December 11, 2025 Board meeting was 

supported by Brown. 

Vote: Aye:  All in favor (8-0) 

 Opposed:  None 

Motion passed. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

None 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

MOTION by White to approve the Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting held November 13, 

2025, amended by Brown to move “Old Business” to its own line, was supported by Muthukuda,  

Vote: Aye: All in favor 

 Opposed:  None 

Motion passed. 

 

TREASURER’S REPORT  

MOTION by Brown to approve paying November 2025 operating bills totaling $360,239.36 was 

supported by Murphy. 

Vote: Aye:  All in favor 

 Opposed:  None 

Motion passed. 

 

 



MOTION by Brown to receive and file November 2025 financial reports was supported by White. 

Vote: Aye:  All in favor 

 Opposed:  None 

Motion passed. 

K. Brown:  

• Year to date interest earned from Michigan Class is $508,699.83. 

 

FRIENDS’ REPORT (S. Charlesbois) 

• Fall author event will feature T.J. Klune (House in the Cerulean Sea and others). 

• Friends have $544,509 in their endowment. 

• The Friends are giving $45,000 for the creation of the outdoor space at Twelve Mile.  

• Membership letter going out soon.  

 

LIBRARY DIRECTOR’S REPORT (K. Siegrist) 

• The First Grade field trips are beginning. All first grade classes in Farmington schools visit the 

library during the year, and each student gets a library card. Bus costs are covered by the 

Friends. 

• Library of Things continues to add items, such as metal detectors, mobile document scanners, 

tire inflators, and a VHS/DVD player.  

• FCL staff participated in the Holly Days festivities in Farmington on December 6. 

• Bids for construction manager for Phase One will hopefully come to the board for selection in 

January.  

• MCD Architects is gifting FCL a Tricolor European Beech tree to replace the one that will be 

lost in Phase One construction at Liberty Street.  

• This is Kelley’s last official report as Director. Sasha Matthews has been working since 

December 1. 

 

IDEA Update 

Krystal Sexton provided annual update on the work of the IDEA Taskforce (Inclusion, Diversity, 

Equality, Accessibility).  

• FCL hosted The Library Network’s (TLN) first EDI conference, “This Conference is for 

Everyone.” This conference will now return to FCL next year.  

 

SUBCOMMITTEE UPDATES 

Personnel (D. Muthukuda) 

• Welcome, Sasha Matthews! 

 

Facilities (S. Snodgrass) 



 Farmington Community Library Board of Trustees 
 Board Meeting, 6:00 p.m. - November 13, 2025 

 

• Topics discussed December 4 included construction managers, landscaping plans, and HVAC 

at Liberty Street. A new compressor will be needed for one of the rooftop units.  

• The next Committee meeting will be January 8. 

 

Finance (K. Brown) 

• Working on memorial gift and naming rights policies.. S. Charlesbois represented Friends in 

discussion.  

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

None 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

None 

 

CORRESPONDENCE 

None 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

None 

 

TRUSTEE COMMENT 

• E. McMullen: thank you to staff for work on celebration of 50 years at Liberty Street. Thank 

you to Friends for money given for Phase One work (on top of other Friends support). 

• General: A celebration (community invited) of S. Matthews joining FCL and of K. Siegrist’s 

retirement will be held January 6, 2026. 

• C. Doby: request for help judging Elks Club scholarship applications.  

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

The Board meeting was adjourned by President McClellan at 7:05. The next meeting of the 

Library Board is scheduled for Thursday, January 8, 2026, at 6:00 pm at Twelve Mile. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

Jim White, Secretary 

Library Board of Trustees 



          APPROVED 
MEETING MINUTES 

FARMINGTON AREA ARTS COMMISSION 
November 13, 2025 - 6:30 PM 

THE HAWK FARMINGTON HILLS COMMUNITY CENTER 
LESSON STUDIO ROOM 

29995 TWELVE MILE ROAD 
FARMINGTON HILLS, MI 48334 

(248) 699-6712  www.fhgov.com 
 

 
 
CALLED TO ORDER BY:  Commissioner Ferencz   AT: 6:30 PM 
 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:      Sean Deason, Don Fritz, Ted Hadfield, Claire Perko,  

Celeste McDermott, Nora Mason, Lesa Ferencz, Cheryl Blau, 
Bree Schwartz, Lindsay Janoch (late arrival) 

 
MEMBERS ABSENT:        Cindy Carleton, Craig Nowak, Jeff Dutka 

           
 

OTHERS PRESENT:          Jackie Boleware, Farmington Hills City Council 
   Rachel Timlin, Cultural Arts Supervisor 

 
Public: Mike Berger, Keith Janoch 

 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
Motion by Commissioner Perko, support by Commissioner McDermott to approve the agenda with amendments. Add 
SFC presentation follow-up between items 7 & 8 
 

MOTION CARRIED 7:0:0 
 
APPROVAL OF OCTOBER 11, 2025 MINUTES: 
 
Motion by Commissioner Perko, support by Commissioner Hadfield to approve the minutes with amendments. 

1. Changing Art Czar to Chair of the Art Committee for the DDA 
2. Amount voted and approved for the Fired and Fused Commission tiles is $800 

MOTION CARRIED 7:0:0 

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
FARMINGTON ART REPORT 
Farmington City Hall Reception on Nov 20th at 7pm 
New leaf art gifted by sister city, Vacri, in Italy 
Holly Days is Dec 6th 
Kickstart has a new exhibition starting Nov 21st: Richard Halprin, Gary Mayer, Mary Brooks 
 
COMMISSION BUDGET 
 
Will discuss art awards and other misc. budget expenses at next meeting. 
 



    
   

:Page 2 

CULTURAL ARTS DIVISION REPORT:  
 
Art Awards were successful with great energy from the hosts. 
Sponge Bob the Musical opens 11/13/25 with 110 kids in the show. 
Detroit Metro Youth Symphony performance was very well attended 
Native American event had over 70 people attend 
Upcoming: Youth theater production of Scrooge and Once Upon a December Eve, and more! 
Art on the Grand deadline is end of December 
New Farmington Hills City Hall artwork will be installed in December with opening in January. 
Bid for youth theater service contract goes out on 11/13/25 
Cultural Arts programs are successfully running in the black. 
 
SFC Presentation Follow-up 
 
A list of questions will be submitted to our Council Liaison that we would like City Council to request from SFC. 
 
NEW COMMISSION ROLE: PUBLIC ART 
Chair Ferencz presented a summary of the new ordinances (C-7-2025, C-8-2025) to the Commission. The ordinance will 
go into effect 11/17/25. Discussion regarding public art. The Commission agenda should be updated to reflect the 
Commission’s new charge. 
 
 
COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 
 

• Chair Ferencz: Arts Commission holiday party will be Dec 13 in her home. 25/26 City Budget includes 100,000 
allocations for public art. 

• Commissioner Fritz: Enjoyed the Paul Keller Trio jazz concert in the Black Box Theatre. 
• Commissioner Perko: Inquired about scheduling the glass fusion project with Commissioners. 
• Commissioner Schwartz: Enjoyed the DIA’s programming for Native American Heritage month. 
• Commissioner Hadfield: Shared that Albert Young’s wife appreciated that he was honored at this year’s 

Farmington Area Arts Awards. 
• Commissioner Blau: Her students at Roper are studying fall trees and will be observing them and painting them 

throughout the season. She shared information about a book with the Commission. 
 
 
LIAISON COMMENTS 
 
Councilwoman Boleware will provide an update soon on the mural outside of Theatre. 
 
NEXT MEETING DATE: January 8, 2026 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Adjourned by: Chair Ferencz at 8:07 PM 
 
Minutes drafted by: Lesa Ferencz / Lindsay Janoch 


	1.20.2026 Regular Agenda
	4Aa 12.1.2025 Regular Meeting Minutes
	4Ab 12.15.2025 Special Meeting Minutes
	4Ac 12.15.2025 Regular Meeting Minutes
	4Ba Monthly Payments Report November 2025
	4Bb Monthly Payments Report December 2025
	4C December  2025 Public Safety Report
	4Da Staff Report 2026 Library Events
	4Db 6.11.2026 Last day of school celebration
	4Dc 6.15.2026 Truck a palooza
	4De 6.17.2026 Family Fun in Riley Park and 6.24, 7.8 & 7.15
	4Df 6.18.2026 Pavilion Story Time & 6.25, 7.2, 7.9, 7.16, 7.23, 7.30
	4Fa SR Optimist Day proclamation
	4Fb proclamation_optimist_day_LaRussa
	7Aa 2025 Parks and Recreation Master Plan Staff Report-Final
	7Ab City of Farmington - Recreation Master Plan Resolution
	RESOLUTION NO. XX-XX-XX

	7Ba Praise in the Park
	7Bb 7.26.2026 Praise in the Park
	7C 1-20-26 Staff Report for Proposed Founders Festival Committee Members
	9a Board & Commission Minutes
	9b DDA Meeting Minutes 12.3.25 DRAFT
	9c Historic Comm Minutes (11-19-2025)
	9d 121125-fcl-board-meeting-minutes-approved
	9e faac-11-13-2025-approved



